
Page 1 of 2 
 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
Meeting Date:      Wednesday, September 13, 2023 
Time:        5:30 p.m. 
Location:       District Administration Building   
Remote Viewing Access:     https://bit.ly/47KjTlD 
Remote Public Comment Sign-Up Form:  https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk 
Interpretación al español estará disponible.  
 

AGENDA  
 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM       RON MABRY 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Special Recognition DR. TRACI PIERCE 
A. 2023-24 Student School Board Representative and Representative-Elect  
B. New Kennewick School District Administrators  

  
4. Communications from Parents, Staff, and District Residents 
 
5. Consent Items 
 Approval of Board Minutes 

A. Minutes of School Board Meeting August 16, 2023 
 

Human Resources Reports  
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
B. Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans 2023 - 2024 

 
 Business Office Items 

A. Budget Status Report Ending July 31, 2023 
B. Payroll and Vouchers Ending July 31, 2023 
C. Updated Budget Status Report Ending June 30, 2023 
D. Cabinet and Superintendent Contract Updates 
 

 Teaching and Learning Reports 
A. Carl D. Perkins Grant Assurances 2023 – 2024 

 
6. Superintendent/Board Member Report 
  
7. Reports and Discussions 

A. 2023 – 2024 Strategic Objectives        DR. TRACI PIERCE 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F47KjTlD&data=05%7C01%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7C5586beff5d89456720f008dba3f9d8d8%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638284065710295182%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2FkG3SHCld1DLReFq1bGOGhc4dMjMZNFyvn0nWu6ktwY%3D&reserved=0
https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk


KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
DR. TRACI PIERCE 
SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 

Page 2 of 2 

B. Student Growth and Proficiency Targets  ALYSSA ST. HILAIRE 
C. 2023 – 2024 Get to Know KSD Plan  ROBYN CHASTAIN 

 
8. Unfinished Business 

A. Policy No. 2314, INSTRUCTION: Use of Outside Media Resources in the 
Classroom DR. TRACI PIERCE 
 

9. New Business 
A. Policy No. 2235, INSTRUCTION: Transition to Kindergarten MATT SCOTT  
B. Policy No. 5020, PERSONNEL: Collective Bargaining DR. TRACI PIERCE 
C. Policy No. 5161, PERSONNEL: Civility in the Workplace  

DR. TRACI PIERCE 
  

10. Next Meeting Agenda 
A. Study Session: Performance Indicators & Targets 
B. Family/Parent Involvement and Engagement Efforts 

 
11. Executive Session (Approximately 30 minutes) 

A. Per RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g) Superintendent Self-Assessment 
 

12. Other Business as Authorized by Law 
 
13. Adjourn 

 
 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 Administration Building / Remote Board Meeting  
August 16, 2023 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Michael Connors, President of the Board; Ron Mabry, Vice President 
of the Board; Diane Sundvik, Legislative Representative of the Board; Micah Valentine, 
Board Member; Gabe Galbraith, Board Member; and Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent 
and Secretary of the Board. 
 
Cabinet Members: Dr. Doug Christensen, Associate Superintendent of Human 
Resources; Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Alyssa St. Hilaire, 
Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning; Vic Roberts, Executive Director of 
Business Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of Communications and Public 
Relations; Ron Cone, Executive Director of Information Technology.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President Michael Connors called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance with approximately 27 online and in-person staff and guests in attendance. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 
  
 None   
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve the consent items as presented. 
 
 Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of Regular Board Meeting July 26, 2023 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
• Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans 2023-24 
• 2023-24 Sodexo/KSD Food Management Service Contract 
• 2023-24 Tri-Tech/Sodexo Culinary Arts Instructional Program Contract 

 



Minutes 
August 16, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 
 

Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce reported that building administrators, teachers, and new 
staff members have received training, professional development, and onboarding 
activities over the last few weeks. She shared that the district is implementing new 
orientation and onboarding processes for new staff members to help them successfully 
start their new jobs. She highlighted professional development efforts focused on 
supporting building administrators and teacher teams in strengthening Professional 
Learning Communities (PLCs) and provided research regarding PLCs' effectiveness on 
student learning outcomes. 

 
Board Member Gabe Galbraith reported he attended the recent Kennewick Police 
Department (KPD) active shooter training held at Chinook Middle School. He 
commented that he is grateful for the partnership with the KPD.   
 
Board Member Micah Valentine reported attending active shooter training and several 
community meetings where he was asked to speak. 
 
Board Member Ron Mabry shared that he introduced student and Southridge High School 
financial club leader Ashwin Joshi to some of our state leaders. He commented that he 
was invited to attend Heritage University's grand opening and highlighted that each city 
of the Tri-Cities now has a university. 
 
President Mike Connors reported that he has been in email communication with Ashwin 
Joshi and is working to connect him with State Representative, April Connors. He shared 
that Heritage University’s grand opening was great and that seeing more options for 
continuing education in the city is always good. 
 

REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 
 Technology Operations Update 
  

Ron Cone, Executive Director of Information Technology, presented the annual report on 
Technology Operations.  

 
 Role of Student Board Representative 
  

Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce asked Board member Gabe Galbraith to share his idea of 
having the Student Board Representative do a project at the end of the year. Following the 
Board discussion, Dr. Pierce will develop proposals to bring to the Board based on what was 
discussed, with the project requirement and ability to earn elective credit potentially taking 
effect in the 2025-26 school year.  

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None 



Minutes 
August 16, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 Policy No. 6100, ADMINISTRATION: Line-Staff Chart 
  
 Dr. Pierce shared that the line-staff chart in Policy 6100 is updated each year to reflect the 

current year's staff. 
 
 Motion by Ron Mabry to adopt Policy No. 6100, ADMINISTRATION: Line-Staff Chart as 

presented. 
 
Seconded by Diane Sundvik. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 Policy No. 2164, INSTRUCTION: Career & Technical Education 
  
 Dr. Pierce presented changes to Policy No. 2164 to better align with the WSSDA model 

policy. 
  
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve Policy No. 2164, INSTRUCTION: Career & 

Technical Education, as written for 1st and 2nd reading. 
  

Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 
 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 Policy No. 2314, INSTRUCTION: Use of Outside Media Resources in the Classroom 
  
 Dr. Pierce presented Policy 2314 for the Board to review. The Board expressed consensus 

interest in modifying the policy to allow PG-rated movies to be shown to students in grades 
3-12 and in having parental permission required for all movies shown.  

 
 The Board asked for the amended policy to be put on the agenda for the next meeting. 
 
. 



Minutes 
August 16, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 
 Policy No. 2414, INSTRUCTION: Alternative Learning Experience Programs 
  
 Dr. Pierce presented changes to Policy No. 2414 to better align with the WSSDA policy 

model and to reflect current practice.   
  
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve Policy No. 2414, INSTRUCTION: Alternative 

Learning Experience Programs, for first and second reading. 
 
Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 Policy No. 2415, INSTRUCTION: Online Learning 
  
 Dr. Pierce presented changes to Policy No. 2415. 
  
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to accept Policy No. 2415, INSTRUCTION: Online Learning for 

first and second reading. 
 
Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 Policy No. 7430, FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT: Lease Capitalization Threshold 

 
Vic Roberts presented changes and additions to Policy No. 7430. 

  
 Motion by Gabe Galbraith to approve Policy No. 7430, FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT: 

Lease Capitalization Threshold, for the first and second readings as written. 
 
Seconded by Diane Sundvik. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 



Minutes 
August 16, 2023 
Page 5 
 
 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 
The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. K-12 Student Goal Report: Academic Growth and Proficiency Targets 
B. Get to Know KSD 
C. Policy No. 2314 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 President Michael Connors announced an end to the business portion of the meeting at 6:51 

p.m. and moved the Board into executive session at 7:00 p.m. per RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g) to 
discuss Superintendent and Cabinet Performance for approximately 30 minutes. Mr. 
Connors noted that no further formal action would be taken.  

 
OTHER BUSINESS AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW. 
 
 Mr. Connors reconvened the regular session of the Board at 7:40 p.m. There being no 

further business, the Board adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved:  September 13, 2023 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date
Cecilia Oronia Chinook/HHHMS Mig. Grad. Specalist Program need 1.0 2023-24
Letisha Larson Amon Creek Counselor Program need .50 NON 2023-24
Kristin Anderson Amon Creek Teacher - Elem Sp Srvcs Jundt resignation 1.0 2023-24
Corrinda Lathan Highlands MS Teacher - MS Harper move 1.0 TBD
Kimberley Coronado Amistad Teacher - Elem MacLellan move 1.0 NON 2023-24
Ryan Engel Park MS Teacher - MS Walters move 1.0 2023-24
Kaitlyn Thompson DHMS Teacher - MS Murphy resignation 1.0 2023-24
Danysha Salinas Edison Teacher - Elem Klages move 1.0 2023-24
Tracie Vertz Vista Teacher - Elem Morgan move 1.0 2023-24
Kassandra Espada Park MS Teacher - MS Cuevas move 1.0 2023-24
Tamara Barcus Cottonwood Teacher - Elem Crandall move 1.0 2023-24
April McKinney Chinook Teacher - MS Spec Srvcs Bennett move 1.0 2023-24
Rosa Ontiveros Eastgate Teacher - Elem Camargo move 1.0 2023-24
Cassandra Miller KeHS Teacher - HS Larsen retirement .20 NON 2023-24
Kathleen McConnell Fuerza Asst. Principal Epperson move 1.0 Eff. 9/5/2023
Tia Monzingo Highlands MS Teacher - MS Stevens move 1.0 Eff. 8/28/23
Alicia Talmage KaHS Teacher - HS Hamilton resignation 1.0 8/30/2023
Amy Stites District Occupational Therapist Rutherford move 1.0 Eff 9/8/23
Karina Thorne KaHS Teacher - HS Requesting LOA (1st) .20 .80 to .60 2023-24
Travis Wright Ridge View Teacher - Elem Amended LOA from .20 to .10 fte 1.0 to .90 2023-24
Alyssa Peterson Keewaydin Teacher - PS Requesting LOA (1st)  1.0 Eff. 10/12/23
Haley Poznanski Canyon View Teacher - Elem Requesting LOA 1.0 Eff. 1/4/24
Melissa Sexton Eastgate Teacher - Elem Steiger LOA 1.0 NON 2023-24
Noemi Hernandez Amistad Teacher - Elem Reed LOA 1.0 NON Eff. 9/5/23
Sydney Freitag Cottonwood Teacher - Elem Leonard LOA (PAR) 1.0 NON Eff. 9/5/23
Gary Bosley Hawthorne Librarian - Elem 1.0 Eff 1/31/24
Raegan Bishop Chinook Teacher - MS Spec Srvcs 1.0 8/21/2023RESIGNATIONS

DATE:    Wednesday, September 13, 2023

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS

REHIRE
REPLACEMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT

RETIREMENTS

9/13/2023 Page 1



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Jordan Pies Highlands MS Asst. Principal 1.0 8/29/2023
Mandi Shultz District Nurse 8/31/2023
Faith Martin Tri Tech Teacher - HS 1.0 Eff. 8/28/23
Miranda McCombs District Nurse 1.0 Eff. 9/30/23
Hollie Lindgren Vista Teacher - Elem Jennings-Birch resignation 1.0 2023-24
Nefertiti Stevens HMS to HHHMS Teacher - MS Tippett move 1.0 2023-24
Sydney Yazwinski A Creek to Chinook Teacher - Elem to MS McFadden move 1.0 2023-24
Anna Harper HMS to SrHS Teacher - MS to HS Salisbury retirement 1.0 2023-24
Amber Culhane Park MS to Wa Elem Teacher-MS to Asst. Principal Stiles move 1.0 8/24/2023

Amy Francis
Chinook to Admin. 
Ctr.

Teacher MS to Asst. Dir.  
Coll. & Car. Readiness Mattson move 1.0 Eff. 9/7/2023

Lisa Brittain Cwood to KDC
Teacher - El Spc Srvcs to 
PS Sp Srvcs Peterson LOA 1.0 NON 2023-24

Suzanne Johnansen HMS to Vista Teacher - MS to Elem Lindgren move 1.0 Eff. 9/5/2023

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

9/13/2023 Page 2



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Olivia Sonnichsen
Horse Heaven 

Hills
Para/SS/Resource Room/Temp

Program need for 2023-24 

school year
6.0 8/30/2023

Rosemary Harris
Horse Heaven 

Hills
Para/SS/LifeSkills 1-1 Program need 6.5 8/30/2023

Stephanie Steinwand Chinook Para/SS/LifeSkills Program need 6.5 8/30/2023

Juliana Furniss Hawthorne Para/SS/LifeSkills Program need 6.5 9/18/2023

Drew Warner Southgate/Park Para/SS/SLP Tele-Therapist Aid
Program need for 2023-24 

school year
6.0 9/6/2023

Tabarek Al Anbagi
Horse Heaven 

Hills
Cook Program need 6.0 8/30/2023

Jessica Crews Sage Crest
Para/SS/1-1 for Student with 

Disability
Program need 6.0 8/30/2023

Patricia Mosley Communications
Assistant Director of 

Communications
Department Need 8.0 9/1/2023

Tracy Bryant Facility Services
Facility Servcices Support 

Secretary
Department Need 6.0 8/28/2023

Cynthia Cantrell Amistad Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Lindsey England 6.0 8/30/2023

Kit Crawford Kamiakin Para/SS/Tier II Autism Replaces Marcy Overturf 6.0 8/30/2023

Bianca Rodriguez Chinook Para/SS/Tier II Autism 1-1 Replaces Lynnde Bishop 6.0 9/12/2023

Andrea Roberts Eastgate Cook Replaces Monica Rivera 6.0 8/30/2023

Hannah Estalilla Hawthorne Para/FP/BE Replaces Kayla Hull 6.0 8/30/2023

Andrew Mackenzie Southridge Para/SS/Tier III Autism 1-1 Replaces Jaron Sprong 6.5 8/30/2023

Ashley Acosta ECEAP Para/ECEAP/Bilingual
Replaces Stephanie 

Cervantes
8.0 8/30/2023

Essence Estrada ECEAP Para/ECEAP Replaces Jamie Nealey 8.0 8/30/2023

Melissa Sautell KDC Para/SS/OT/PT Replaces Lisa Hebert 6.0 8/30/2023

Daniela Flores-Gomez Fuerza Para/FP/BE/Bilingual Replaces Noemi Nerell 6.5 8/30/2023

NEW POSITONS

REPLACEMENT

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: September 13, 2023

9/13/2023 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Diane Ostrom Kamiakin Para/SS/LifeSkills 2-1 Replaces Robert Klei 6.5 8/30/2023

Elmer Mendez Kamiakin Front Office Secretary/Bilingual Replaces Kim Craythorn 5.0 8/30/2023

Naomi Paup-Lefferts ECEAP Para/ECEAP Replaces Luz Rosario 8.0 8/30/2023

Alicia Valenzuela Hawthorne Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Cami Rhoten 6.0 8/30/2023

TJ Milton Jr Southridge Para/SS/1-1/Physically Disabled Replaces Chuck Huang 6.0 8/30/2023

Stephanie Persinger Amon Creek Cook Replaces Ana Cuello 6.0 8/30/2023

Nayancy Otero 

Godinez
Lincoln Para/FP/BE/Bilingual Replaces Cynthia Michel 6.5 8/30/2023

Calista Wade-Trent Canyon View Para/SS/Tier II Behavior
Replaces Diana Castro 

Castrejon
6.0 8/31/2023

Adriana Barcenas Edison Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Heather Baltazar 6.0 8/30/2023

Catherine Thatsana Canyon View Para/SS/Tier II Behavior
Replaces Sofia Mellish 

Garcia
6.0 8/30/2023

Cadence Gregory Hawthorne Para/SS/Tier II Autism Replaces Miriam Rhoten 6.0 8/30/2023

Samantha Northrup JJC Para/Day Reporting GED
Replaces Salma Aguilar-

Alvarez
5.0 9/1/1952

Kelsey Morris Canyon View Para/FP/LAP Replaces Hannah Carlisle 6.0 8/30/2023

Charlie Richmond Southridge Para/SS/Tier III Autism 1-1 Replaces Heidi Pace 6.5 8/30/2023

Zane Jackson
Horse Heaven 

Hills
Para/FP/LAP Replaces Audrey Huff 6.0 8/30/2023

Thomas Evans Transportation Bus Driver 4.42 9/6/2023

James Coldwell Transportation Bus Driver 4.0 8/30/2023

Alejandra Ramos Rico Transportation Bus Attendant 3.25 9/6/2023

Alberto Tass Herrera Transportation Bus Driver 5.0 9/7/2023

Misti Andrews Transportation Bus Driver 4.42 8/30/2023

Sean Wellons Transportation Bus Driver 4.08 8/31/2023

Pamela Leavitt Transportation Bus Attendant 3.42 9/1/2023

Chatharina Hamsen Southridge Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces James Callaghan 6.0 8/30/2023

REPLACEMENT CONT.

9/13/2023 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Maria Valdivia Amistad Para/FP/ELL/ESL Replaces Amy Munoz 6.0 8/30/2023

Hunter Vo Amistad Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Candace Bersosa 6.0 8/30/2023

Kayla Fredeen Kamiakin Para/SS/Tier II Autism Replaces Rachel Jimerson 6.0 9/13/2023

Elizabeth Barajas Amistad Cook Replaces Trudy O'Quinn 6.0 9/8/2023

Vilayvanh Phaengpha Administration Custodian/Swing Replaces Adrian Lopez 8.0 9/13/2023

Somboun Sisayket Washington Custodian/Swing Replaces Brittany Cater 8.0 9/14/2023

Rachel LaBelle Legacy Para/FP/LAP Replaces Edith Ramriez 7.0 9/14/2023

Dominique Amaya Desert Hills Para/SS/Resource Room
Replaces Madeline 

Crawford
6.0 9/14/2023

Kevin Johnson Chinook Para/SS/LifeSkills Classroom
Replaces Margarita Ramos 

Chavez
6.5 9/12/2023

Brenna Blanscett Chinook Para/FP/LAP/BE Replaces Tawnya Elliott 6.0 8/30/2023

Dana Berkey Southridge Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Charlette Gilbert 6.0 8/30/2023

Lilandra Barajas Chinook Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Michael Cuevas 6.0 9/1/2023

Gregory Paup Legacy Para/SS/Resource Room Program Need 6.0 9/12/2023

Joceline Gallardo Cascade Para/FP/ELL/Bilingual Replaces Grace Friedrich 6.25 9/14/2023

Julia Torres Communications
Communications 

Secretary/Bilingual

Replaces Tania Ibarra 

Flores
5.0 8/22/2023

Caela Nygren Southridge Para/SS/LifeSkills 6.5 8/16/2023

Diana Castro Castrejon Canyon View Para/SS/Tier II Behavior To teach 6.0 8/16/2023

Nesreen Al Muzayen Federal Programs
Refugee/Immigrant 

Cooordinator/Bil Arabic
Job title correction 8.0 8/18/2023

Michael Cuevas Chinook Para/SS/Resource Room 6.0 8/17/2023

Teresa Stephens Vista Elementary Secretary 6.0 9/15/2023

Madeline Crawford Desert Hills Para/SS/Resource Room To sub para 6.0 8/29/2023

Jacquelyn Seebacher Cottonwood Secretary 6.0 9/1/2023

Sunny Pedersen Transportation Bus Driver To sub driver 4.58 8/29/2023

Wendy Bowen Transportation Bus Driver 7.58 8/16/2023

Veronica Avila Federal Programs
Migrant Data Analyst & 

Recruiter
8.0 9/14/2023

REHIRE

REPLACEMENT CONT.

RESIGNATION

9/13/2023 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Tina Mitchell Transportation Bus Driver 5.33 8/16/2023

Courtney Bissinger Desert Hills
Para/SS/1-1 for Student with 

Disability
7.0 9/7/2023

Fallon Mayer Southgate
Para/FP/Multi-Lingual 

Lrnrs/Safety & Supervision
6.25 8/16/2023

Heather Blackketter KDC Para/SS/OT/PT 6.0 8/30/2023

Edith Ramirez Legacy Para/FP/LAP 7.0 8/18/2023

Jason Jaosky Special Services Intervention Para To sub para 6.5 8/18/2023

Arwa Khaleel Southgate Para/SS/Resource Room 6.0 8/23/2023

Narine Lloyd Hawthorne Para/SS/LifeSkills 6.5 9/21/2023

Christine Bentley Kamiakin Para/CTE To casual game worker 6.0 8/24/2023

Deborah Buchanan Sage Crest Para/SS/LifeSkills To sub teach 6.5 8/29/2023

Catherine Massengale Washington Para/FP/LAP/BE 6.5 9/8/2023

Manreet Kaur Kennewick/Park Cook To sub NS worker

Lisa Hebert N/A Para N/A 8/31/2023

Suzi Bullock Transportation Bus Driver N/A 8/24/2023

Elizabeth Gregg
Horse Heaven 

Hills
Para/SS/LifeSkills 6.5 8/27/2024

Scott Robertson Facility Services HVAC Technician 8.0 4/30/2023

RETURN FROM LOA

Courtney Broadie Washington Para/FP/BE 6.0 8/15/2023

Qizhao Huang Southridge Para/SS/1-1/Physically Disabled Moved to sub para pool 6.0 8/15/2023

Coleen Kopf Kamiakin Para/SS/Tier II Autism 6.0 8/15/2023

Candy Johnson K-12 Temp Health Room Assistant 6.0 9/6/2023

TERMINATION

LAYOFF

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

RESIGNED FROM LOA

RESIGNATION CONT.

RETIREMENT

9/13/2023 AM



Page 1 
 

 
EXTRACURRICULAR 

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 
Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  Wednesday, September 13, 2023 
 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
REPLACEMENTS       

 Ethan Miller Southrdge HS Asst Boys Tennis  New Head Coach - Rehire  
2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Nicole Petersen Southridge HS Asst Girls Tennis New Head Coach – Phil Dron  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Gabrielle Humphries Kennewick HS Asst Girls Swim Replaces .5 Alexis Murphy  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Madison Ortega Kennewick HS Asst Girls Swim Replaces .5 Alexis Murphy  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Katelyn Fetterolf Kennewick HS Head Dance New Head Coach  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Jonathan Mequet Chinook MS Head Girls Soccer Replaces Cyndi Cottrell  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Kendra Welsh Kamiakin HS Asst Dance Open Position  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Madison Davis Kamiakin HS Color Guard Replaces Tori Carroll  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Jacob Hurlbert Desert Hills MS Asst Football Replaces Todd Hardy    2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Eric Martinez Desert Hills MS Asst Football Replaces Kurtis Clawson  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Patrick Bond Chinook MS Assistant Football Replaces Jason Martin  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Lisa Martin Horse Heaven Hills  Head Girls Socer Replaces Jennifer Putnam  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Jennille Schab Kennewick HS Assistant Volleyball New Position – Emergency Hire  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Devin Chavez Kennewick HS Assistant Football Due to Numbers – Emergency Hire  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Jenna Clark Kamiakin HS Assistant Volleyball New Position – Emergency Hire  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Cameron Stephen Kamiakin HS Assistant Football Due to Numbers – Emergency Hire  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Olivia Benske Kamiakin HS Head Swim Replaces Ned Hastings (Emerg Hire)  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Daicee Humphrey Park MS Assistant Volleyball Replaces .5 FTE of Pauline Franklin - Resigned  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Anica West Park MS Assistant Volleyball Replaces .5 FTE of Pauline Franklin - Resigned  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Esthepania Monroy Park MS Assistant Boys Soccer Replaces Stephanie Monroy  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Aubrey Haskell Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Volleyball Rehire – Emergency Hire  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Clayton Ayres Horse Heaevn Hills Assistant Football Replaces Ayers and Boyce (.5 FTE each)  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Andrew Low Park MS Assistant Football Rehire – Emerg Hire  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Travis Aerts Park MS Assistant Football Replces Dan Price  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Ted Homme Southidge HS Assistant Football Replaces Robert Loar  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Daniel Price Park MS Head Football Replaces Chris Oatis (Tempoary – 1 Yr LOA)  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Kyla Goble Kennewick HS Assistant Cheer Replaces Ramon Gutierrez  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Megan Wilkinson Highlands MS Head Girls Soccer Replaces Kylie Scherbarth  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Rene Carrillo Avila Highlands MS Assistant Soccer Replaces Megan Liklinson  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Joanna Inabnit  (Conover) Highlands MS Head Volleyball Replaces Madison Crandall -  (Emerg. Hire)  2023-2024 Sc Yr 



Page 2 
 

NEW POSITIONS 
REPLACEMENTS 

(CONTINUED)      

 

 Peggy Baker Highlands MS Assistant Volleyball Replaces Joanna Conover (Emerg Hire)  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Brienne Coughlin Kamiakin HS Assistant Swim Replaces Olivia Benski – Took Head Coach Temp Pos  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Olivia Benski Kamiakin HS Head Swim Coach Replaces Ned Hastings  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Rashad Lathan Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Volleyball Due to Numbers – Emergency Hire  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Rachel McPeak Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Volleyball Due to Numbers – Emergency Hire  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Debbie Rouche Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Boys Soccer Emergency Hire – Replaces Lisa Martin  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Katherine Patterson Desert Hills MS Assistant Volleyball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Kaitlyn Thompson Desert Hills MS Assistant Volleyball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Mikayla Allen Desert Hills MS Assistant Boys Soccer Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Amy Biglin Desert Hills MS Assisant Cross Country Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Michellert Riegert Park MS Head Boys Soccer Replaces Tyler Ramos  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Tristan Robins Kennewick HS Assistant Cross Country Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Natalija Cuevas Chinook MS Assistant Volleyball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Elizabeth Capetillo Chinook MS Assistant Volleyball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Josh Pasma Chinook MS Assistant Boys Soccer Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      
LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
 Chris Oatis Park MS Head Football One Yr LOA 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Madison Crandall Highlands MS Head Volleyball Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

 Jason Martin CHINOOK MS Assistant Football Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Scott Loar Southridge HS Assistant Football Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Todd Hardy Desert Hills MS Assistant Football Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Kylie Scherbarth Highlands MS Head Girls Soccer Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Brad Boyce Horse Heaven Hills MS Assistant Football  (.5 FTE) Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Allison Lamotte Highlands MS Assistant Track (.5 FTE) Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Curtis Clawson Desert Hills MS Assistant Football Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Jorgan Dennis Kennewick HS Assistant Volleyball Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Ned Hastings Kamiakin HS Head Swim Coach Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Brent Morrison Kamiakin HS Assistant Baseball Resigned 2023 2024 Sc Yr 

 Shannon Fetterolf Horse Heaven Hills MS Head Dance Coach Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 





































SCHOOL DISTRICT 

To: Kennewick School Board Members 

From: Brandon Lord, Fiscal Officer 

Re: Budget Status Report 

Attached are the Budget Status Reports through, June 30, 2023 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

Revenues 285,269,534.00 

Expenditures 300,358,646.00 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

Revenues 11,738,750.00 

Expenditures 44,250,000.00 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

Revenues 17,310,000.00 

Expenditures 16,360,000.00 

ASSOCIATED STUDENT BODY FUND 

Revenues 1,760,000.00 

Expenditures 2,043,000.00 

SELF-INSURED WORKERS COMP/ DENTAL FUND BALANCE 

Revenues 1,450,000.00 

Expenditures 2,175,000.00 

TRANSPORTATION VEHICLE FUND 

Revenues 873,000.00 

Expenditures 1,085,000.00 

PERCENTAGE 

TO BUDGET 

216,800,596.20 0.76 

244,003,159.76 0.81 

7,767,617.16 0.66 

23,778,590.68 0.54 

17,128,708.82 0.99 

16,333,571.89 1.00 

2,048,571.51 1.16 

1,606,749.01 0.79 

84,929.29 0.06 

1,131,240.90 0.52 

4,608.04 0.01 

0.00 0.00 





























1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
The Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (Public Law 115-
224) was signed into law on July 31, 2018 and reauthorized the Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education Act of 2006. The Carl D. Perkins Act is intended to supplement the 
educational programs generally offered with state and local resources. To be in compliance 
with this requirement, a Local Education Agency (LEA) may not divert state and local funds 
from an activity merely because Perkins funds are available.  In accordance with other federal 
funds, districts may only use Perkins money to provide supplemental services that would not 
have been provided had the Perkins funds not been available.   
 
Perkins V represents an important opportunity to expand opportunities for every student to 
explore, choose, and follow career and technical education (CTE) programs of study and career 
pathways to earn credentials of value.  Perkins V includes requirements for a Comprehensive 
Local Needs Assessment (CLNA) which is an evaluation of the performance of students served 
by the LEA.  Results from each eligible recipient’s CLNA will dictate the types of programs and 
activities that agencies can implement with Perkins V funds during the 2023-2024 program 
year and in subsequent program years.  
 
The following Perkins indicators are used to measure district performance:   

• 1S1: Four-Year Graduation Rate Defined as: The percentage of CTE concentrators who 
graduate high school, as measured by the four-year adjusted cohort graduation rate 
(defined in section 8101 of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965). 

• 1S2: Extended Graduation Rate Defined as: The percentage of CTE concentrators who 
graduate high school, as measured by extended year adjusted cohort graduation rate 
defined in such section 8101. 

• 2S1: Academic Proficiency in Reading/Language Arts Defined as: CTE concentrator 
proficiency in the challenging State academic standards adopted by the State under 
section1111(b)(1) of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, as measured by 
the academic assessments in reading/language arts as described in section 1111(b)(2) of 
such Act 

• 2S2: Academic Proficiency in Mathematics Defined as: CTE concentrator proficiency in the 
challenging State academic standards adopted by the State under section1111(b)(1) of the 
Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, as measured by the academic 
assessments in mathematics as described in section 1111(b)(2) of such Act 

• 2S3: Academic Proficiency in Science Defined as: CTE concentrator proficiency in the 
challenging State academic standards adopted by the State under section1111(b)(1) of the 
Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, as measured by the academic 
assessments in science as described in section 1111(b)(2) of such Act 

• 3S1: Postsecondary Placement Defined as: The percentage of CTE concentrators who, in the 
second quarter after exiting from secondary education, are in postsecondary education or 
advanced training, military service or a service program that receives assistance under title 
I of the National and Community Service Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12511 et seq.), are 
volunteers as described in section 5(a) of the Peace Corps Act (22 U.S.C. 2504(a)),or are 

Carl D. Perkins Grant Assurances 
Fiscal Year:  2023-24 

Kennewick School District 
Organization Code: 03017 

Educational Service District 123 
 



2  

employed. 
• 4S1: Non-traditional Program Enrollment Defined as: The percentage of CTE concentrators 

in career and technical education programs and programs of study that lead to non-
traditional fields 

• 5S1: Program Quality – Attained Recognized Postsecondary Credential Defined as: The 
percentage of CTE concentrators graduating from high school having attained a recognized 
postsecondary credential. 

• 5S2: Program Quality – Attained Postsecondary Credits Defined as: The percentage of CTE 
concentrators graduating from high school having attained postsecondary credits in the 
relevant career and technical education program or program of study earned through a dual 
or concurrent enrollment or another credit transfer agreement. 

• 5S3: Program Quality – Participated in Work-Based Learning Defined as: The percentage of 
CTE concentrators graduating from high school having participated in work-based learning. 

 

PERKINS ASSURANCES: 
Perkins V grant applicants hereby assures compliance with the following requirements: 

Federal: 
The Office of Management and Budget’s(OMB) Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) 
Education Department General Administrative Regulations (EDGAR) 
Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (Public Law 115-224) 

State: 
Washington State Perkins Plan Requirements 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 
Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 
State Administrative and Accounting Manual (SAAM) 
Career and Technical Education Program Standards 
OSPI Account Manual for Public School Districts in the State of Washington 

The authorized signatures attest the school district has read and understood the requirements 
listed and agree that by accepting the Carl D. Perkins federal grant award, the LEA will agree to 
abide by all Federal and State assurances as required of that money. 
 

 

_____________________________________    __________  _____________________________________    __________  
School District Superintendent             Date   CTE Director          Date 

 

_____________________________________    __________  _____________________________________    __________  
School Board, Chair         Date   General Advisory, Chair         Date 



2023-24 Strategic Plan 
September 13, 2023 



• Our Mission, Vision, and Strategic Goals remain the same each 
year.

• Our Performance Indicators and Targets tied to each goal will be 
reviewed/refined this year.

 
• Our Annual Objectives for each goal are reviewed and updated 

each year based on data, needs and Board priorities.

• The Board monitors accomplishment of Annual Objectives 
through Board reports and updates 

• We track our progress on toward meeting our Performance 
Targets in Board reports and in our District Performance 
Indicators and Targets: Annual Report 



Process for Updating Objectives 

• Review Data
o Student, staff, and family survey results
o Student academic achievement data 
o Other organizational data

• Determine Needs
o New requirements and identified improvements
o Input from administrators and staff  

• Seek Board Priorities
o Discussed and identified at annual Board retreat in June 

• Superintendent and Cabinet Team Develops and Finalizes
 
• Board Approves 



Board Priorities 
Identified During the June 7, 2023 Board Retreat 



June 7, 2023 Board Retreat 

• The Board reviewed the results of their 2023 self-assessment, identifying areas of strength and 
opportunities for growth aligned to the WSSDA standards for Board Governance:



2023-24 
Board 
Priorities 



2023-24 Objectives 

















Recommendation 
and 

Next Steps

Recommendation: 
• The Board approves the 2023-24 Strategic Objectives 

Next Steps:
• September 27 Study Session: Discuss updates to the 

Key Performance Indicators and Targets
• October 11 Board Meeting: Approve the 2023-24 Key 

Performance Indicators and Targets
• Publish the updated 2023-24 Strategic Plan 



K-12 Annual Student Goal Report:
All Students are Engaged Learners

September 13, 2023





Presentation Outline 

• Annual Reporting Calendar

• Performance Indicators, Growth and Proficiency Targets, and Data 
oDistrict Level Elementary Data
oDistrict Level Middle School Data 
oContinuous Improvement Efforts

• Appendix A: School Level Data 



Annual Reporting Calendar 



Performance Indicator Reporting Calendar 

Month Focus 

September State assessments:  Smarter Balance Assessment (SBA) and WIDA 

District assessments: Dynamic Indicators of Basic Early Literacy Skills 
(DIBELS) 

October 8th grade Algebra
Credit accumulation
Dual credit 
Graduation rates
 

March Progress Report: MAP, STAR WaKIDS

May District assessments: MAP reading and math 



Performance Indicators
&

 Growth and Proficiency Targets 



Academic Growth and Proficiency Targets

Growth Targets Proficiency Targets 

Are students making 
academic growth and 
progress? 

Are students meeting 
grade level standards 
and expectations? 



Performance Indicators 

• Specific to each grade level
• Include multiple measures 
• Focused on growth and proficiency in:

oReading/ELA
oMath
oEnglish Language Acquisition
oScience
oOn Track for Graduation: Credit Acquisition and Passing Grades
oDual Credit and Preparation for Post-Secondary
oGraduation and Preparation for Post-Secondary or Work 

 

• Growth Targets 



Assessments 

Grades K-2 Grades 3-8 Grades K-12

Dynamic Indicators 
of Basic Early 
Literacy Skills

(DIBELS)

Smarter Balanced Assessment 
(SBA) 

WIDA

 

Early Literacy Skills English Language Arts 
(ELA) 

Math English Language 
Development

DIBELS
• Phonemic awareness
• Alphabetic principle
• Accuracy
• Fluency
• Comprehension 

• Reading
o Literary and informational text: 

key ideas and details 
o Literary text: language, craft and 

structure
o Vocabulary acquisition and use

• Writing 
o Organization/Purpose
o Evidence/Elaboration
o Conventions

• Speaking/ Listening 

• Research 

• Concepts & Procedures 
• Problem Solving
• Communicating Reasoning
• Modeling and Data Analysis 

Grades 3-5:
• Operations and Algebraic 

Thinking
• Number and Operations
• Measurement and Data
• Geometry

Grades 6+:
• Operations and Algebraic 

Thinking
• The Real and Complex 

Number Systems
• Geometry
• Statistics and Probability

• Communicating for social 
and instructional 
purposes

• Communicating 
information, ideas, and 
concepts necessary for 
academic success in 
Language Arts, 
Mathematics, Science, 
and Social Studies 



Example: Grade 3 & 4 Academic Growth and Proficiency Targets



Elementary 
Early Literacy Growth

DIBELS Data



DIBELS
Grade K-2 Target
 
≥50% of all students 
are progressing 
from “intensive” to 
“strategic” or from 
“strategic” to 
“benchmark” from 
fall to spring on 
DIBELS.

Grade Level 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

Grade K 27% 55% 56%

Grade 1 45% 42% 42%

Grade 2 15% 23% 19%



Elementary 
Reading and Math

 Growth & Proficiency
SBA Data



SBA Reading 
and Math 
Growth
Grade 5 Target 
≥50% of all students 
are  progressing 
from their prior year 
SBA from L1 to L2 
or from L2 to L3 on 
the reading and 
math SBA.

SBA Subject 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

Reading n/a 43% 33%

Math n/a 24% 16%



SBA Reading 
and Math 
Proficiency
Grade 5 Target 
≥65% of all students 
are  meeting state 
standards in ELA 
(Level 3 or 4 on 
SBA)

SBA Subject 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

Reading 42% 49% 49%

Math 49% 45% 45%



Middle School
Reading and Math 

Growth & Proficiency
SBA Data



SBA Reading 
and Math 
Growth
Grade 6-8 Target
 
≥50% of all students 
are  progressing 
from their prior year 
SBA from L1 to L2 
or from L2 to L3 on 
the reading and 
math SBA.

6th Grade 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

Reading n/a 35% 31%

Math n/a 32% 28%

7th Grade 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

Reading n/a 41% 40%

Math n/a 24% 16%

8th Grade 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

Reading n/a 39% 25%

Math n/a 14% 14%



SBA Reading 
and Math 
Proficiency
Grade 6-8 Target
 
≥65% of all students 
are  meeting state 
standards in ELA 
(Level 3 or 4 on 
SBA)

6th Grade 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

Reading 43% 43% 48%

Math 22% 29% 34%

7th Grade 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

Reading 41% 49% 49%

Math 25% 28% 33%

8th Grade 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

Reading 43% 45% 44%

Math 41% 34% 36%



Learning Loss & Learning Recovery Data 



English Language Acquisition
Growth & Proficiency

WIDA Data



WIDA 
Growth  

Target:

Multilingual Learner 
students are making 
yearly growth 
(based on years in 
program) 
 
 

Years in 
Program

Growth 
Target

2022-2023

<1 85% 76%

1 80% 74%

2 70% 54%

3 60% 43%

4 50% 42%

5 20% 7%

6+ 10% 0%

Overall 55% 33%



WIDA 
Proficiency

Target:

15% of Multilingual 
Learner students 
reach proficiency in 
six years or less 
 

2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

n/a n/a 4%



Continuous Improvement Efforts





Curriculum Assessment Instruction

• Complete K-5 math 
adoption

• Update District 
Literacy Plan

• Identify essential 
standards at each 
grade level

• Conduct district 
assessment pilot 
study with STAR 
and MAP

• Increase the use of 
SBA Interim 
Assessments

• Provide training on 
using data to inform 
and adjust 
instruction

• Increase support 
for Professional 
Learning 
Communities

• Increase engaging 
teaching 
strategies

• Increase 
inclusionary 
practices

Continuous Improvement Efforts



Questions?



Appendix A:
School Level Data 



Elementary School Growth Data: Early Literacy 

% of students progressing from “intensive” to “strategic” or from “strategic” to 
“benchmark” from fall to spring on DIBELS



Elementary School Growth Data: Reading

% of students are progressing from their prior year SBA from L1 to L2 or from L2 to 
L3 on the reading SBA



Elementary School Proficiency Data: Reading

% of students meeting state standards in ELA (Level 3 or 4 on SBA)



Elementary School Growth Data: Math

% of students progressing from their prior year SBA from L1 to L2 or from L2 to L3 
on the math SBA



Elementary School Proficiency Data: Math

% of students are meeting state standards in Math (Level 3 or 4 on SBA)



Middle School Growth Data: Reading and Math

% of students are progressing from their prior year SBA from L1 to L2 or from L2 to 
L3 on the reading SBA



Middle School Proficiency Data: Reading and Math

% of students are meeting state standards in ELA  (Level 3 or 4 on SBA)



WIDA Proficiency by school



WIDA Proficiency by years in program



Ge t  To  Kn o w  KSD 
2023 - 2024



Em p o w e rEn g a g e

Ed u c a t e

Go a l
Get To Know KSD will 
engage, empower and 
educate families in 
their child’s education 
experience.



Fa m ily  Hu b : 
On lin e  Tra in in g  Re s o u rc e s

• Accessing Tutoring
• Maximizing ParentSquare 
• Navigating PowerSchool (Grades, Attendance, etc.)
• Using Technology Tools To Support Learning (Schoology, etc.)
• Helping with Homework
• Accessing School Information between Multiple Households
• Updating Family Contact Information



Fa m ily  Hu b : 
On lin e  Pa re n t  In fo rm a t io n  

& Ed u c a t io n  Se s s io n s
• Volunteering in Schools
• Accessing Information in Your Language
• Keeping Students Safe Online  
• Using Technology Tools (AI, Chat GPT, etc.)
• Learning the Latest in High School Requirements, Pathways and 

College Credit Opportunities
• Creating a Successful Reader
• Engaging Your Child in Math



Oc t o b e r  -  De c e m b e r

Organize online Family Hub and audit 
exsiting resources. 

J a n u a ry  -  Ma rc h

Create content for volunteering and 
language access.

Ma rc h  -  J u n e
Create content for online safety, technology tools, 
high school updates, reading, and math.

Tim e lin e



Qu e s t io n s ? 



2314 

INSTRUCTION  

 

Use of Outside Media Resources in the Classroom 

 

It is the intent of the district to allow the use of outside resources and materials to enhance student 

learning in the classroom. All resources and materials including, but not limited to, films, print 

publications, television programs, and any kind of video must have instructional value, be related to 

the goals and objectives of our instructional program, and be included in the lesson plan. This is 

regardless of the format and the source of materials which may include materials that are copied, 

recorded, streamed via Internet, or obtained from other sources. The following guidelines must be 

followed when determining appropriateness of any outside resources and materials brought into the 

classroom. 

 

A. All digital, video, or video likevideo-like material derived from any media source 

whatsoever, including Internet video, Internet or computer downloads, and television, must 

be previewed in their entirety by the teacher wishing to use the material. If there is any 

question regarding the appropriateness of this material the building principal will preview the 

video to determine its appropriateness after receiving the request form.  

B. Elementary students in grades K-5 2 will be shown only "G" rated films. "PG" rated films 

may be shown to students in grades 63-12 if they are previewed completely, approved by 

parents and principal, and permission received from parents. “PG-13” rated films may be 

shown to students in grades 9-12. All movies shown to students must be  if they are 

previewed completely, approved by the principal, and permission must be is received from 

parents prior to showing. No "R," or "X" rated films may be shown at any time to any 

student.  

C.  Elementary students in grades K-5 2 will be shown only "TV-Y” or “TV-G" rated shows. 

"TV-Y7”, “TVY7-FV” or “TV-PG" rated shows may be shown to students in grades 63-12 if 

they are previewed completely, approved by parents and principal, and permission received 

from parents. “TV-14” rated films may be shown to students in grades 9-12 if they are 

previewed completely, approved by the principal, and permission is received from parents. 

No "TV-MA" rated shows may be shown at any time to any student.  

D.  Unrated materials require special precautions. Unrated materials, regardless of format or 

source must be reviewed in its entirety and not contain graphic violence, nudity, sexual 

references, drug use, or profanity, none of which may be shown to students without prior 

approval. Any materials that contain the aforementioned must be reviewed by a principal for 

approval. Each issue or volume of a pre-approved periodical, newspaper, or publication need 

not be reviewed provided it is part of an approved curriculum or established scholastic 

program (such as Newspapers in Education), has instructional value, is related to the goals 

and objectives of our instructional program, and is included in the lesson plan.  

 

 

Adopted: June 24, 2009  



Amended:      June 21, 2023 

Amended: September 13, 2023 



2235 

INSTRUCTION  

 

Transition to Kindergarten Program 

 

The district will ensure that its transition to kindergarten program serves eligible students of all 

abilities who need additional preparation to be successful in kindergarten and who lack access to 

other early learning group settings.  

  

The district will consider the best practices pertaining to a transition to kindergarten program as 

developed in collaboration between the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction and the 

Department of Children, Youth, and Families. The district may blend or co-locate a transition to 

kindergarten program with other early learning programs. 

  

Eligibility, Recruitment, and Enrollment 

The term “screening process and tools” means using one or more instruments or methods of 

assessing and measuring the ability and need of an individual student.  

  

Children will be eligible to participate in the district’s transition to kindergarten program as 

follows: 

 

A. Based on a screening process and tool as defined above, the district has 

determined that the child would benefit from additional preparation for 

kindergarten; and 

B. The child’s age is at least 4 years old by August 31 of the school year in which they 

enroll in a transition to kindergarten program. 

1. The district has discretion to establish individualized exceptions for a 

student who turned 5 years old between June 1 and August 31 of the year 

they would be eligible by age to enter kindergarten under WAC 392-335-

010 but who demonstrates need for additional preparation for 

kindergarten through a screening process and tool. 

  

In determining eligibility and admitting students to a transition to kindergarten program, the 

district will: 

 

A. Give priority to children most in need of additional preparation to be successful in 

kindergarten, as demonstrated through a screening process and tool. 

B. Give priority to children with the lowest family income, not otherwise participating in 

another local program. 

C. Not exclude or establish a policy to prohibit participation of an eligible child due only to 

the presence of a disability. 

D. Not charge tuition or other fees from state-funded eligible students for enrollment in a 

transition to kindergarten program. 

 

 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=392-335-010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=392-335-010


2235 

Legal Reference: Chapter 28A.300 RCW Superintendent of Public Instruction  

   WAC 392-425-010  Transition to Kindergarten   

 

 

Adopted: September 13, 2023 
 

 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.300
https://www.k12.wa.us/sites/default/files/public/profpractices/adminresources/rulesprocess/TransitiontoKindergarten_EmergencyRules.pdf


5020 
 

PERSONNEL 

 

Collective Bargaining 
 

The Board believes strongly in the concept of a transparent government.  The Board 

believes that the Legislature has stated its beliefs about the importance of transparent 

government through the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 42.30, which states, “The 

people of this state do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies which serve them. 

The people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the right to 

decide what is good for the people to know and what is not good for them to know. 

The people insist on remaining informed so that they may retain control over the 

instruments they have created." 

 

The Board recognizes that collective bargaining agreements are among the most 

expensive contracts negotiated by the Districtdistrict, and that both taxpayers and 

employees deserve to know how they are being represented during collective 

bargaining negotiations.  

 

The Board believes that to avoid the potential impression of secret deal-making and to 

reduce the amount of misinformation during bargaining, all documents exchanged 

between the parties involved in the negotiations – both District and Labor Union - be 

made immediately available to the public via a website maintained by the District. 

 

In addition, the Board believes that to avoid the potential impression of secret deal-

making and to reduce the amount of misinformation during bargaining,  

A. all All bargaining sessions involving collective bargaining negotiations between 

the District and any of its Labor Unions should will be open to the public.  

Opening collective bargaining negotiations to the public does not mean that the 

public will participate in the negotiations, nor will the public be allowed to speak, 

contribute, or provide input during the negotiations and may be removed if they 

disrupt negotiations.  Public observance of collective bargaining contract 

negotiations will not preclude bargaining representatives of both sides from 

meeting (i) separately and privately to discuss negotiating tactics, goals, and 

methods and (ii) separately and privately for dispute resolution purposes (e.g. 

mediation). 

B. All documents exchanged between the parties involved in the negotiations – both 

District and Labor Union - should be made immediately available to the public via 

a website maintained by the district. 

 

The Board recognizes that both sides must be willing to participate in open bargaining 

and directs administration to proceed with closed bargaining should any bargaining group 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:

A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 

0.56" + Indent at:  0.81"



Policy No. 5020 

Collective Bargaining - Continued 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

be unwilling to jointly conduct open bargaining or to post exchanged documents. 

 

The Board encourages and promotes a good and fair working relationship with the district 

staff. The Board recognizes the right of public staff to join labor organizations of their own 

choosing and to be represented by such organizations in the negotiations of such matters and 

according to such procedures as may be required by law or agreement of the parties. 

 

The Board will engage in collective bargaining with the properly designated bargaining units 

and will abide by collective bargaining agreements reached with such properly designated 

bargaining units. 

 

The negotiator of record to represent the district will be recommended by the superintendent to 

the Board of Directors and may be either the superintendent or a designee. The chief 

negotiator will advise and inform the Board regarding negotiations' progress and will negotiate 

within parameters established by the Board. Any agreements reached by the chief negotiator 

shall not be binding unless formally approved by the Board. 

 

 

Legal Reference: RCW  41.56   RCW   41.56   Public Employees' Collective 

Bargaining 

41.59   Educational Employment Relations Act 

            42.30   Open Public Meetings Act 

 

Adopted:    June 10, 1992  

Amended:   May 8, 2019 

Amended:  September 13, 2023 
 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.19"



5161 

PERSONNEL    
 
 
Civility in the Workplace 
 
The Board believes that a safe, civil environment of mutual respect and orderly conduct 
contributes to a quality educational environment. Conversely, uncivil conduct, similar to other 
forms of disruptive behavior, may interfere with an employee’s ability to accomplish their work 
and a school’s ability to educate its students. 
  
The Board commits the district in its entirety to the core value of mutual respect for each person 
regardless of individual differences or characteristics. The district expects this value to be 
manifested in the daily behavior of all constituents. When differences exist, stakeholders will use 
clear, concise, and courteous communication with the goal of arriving at a goodwill solution. 
Uncivil conduct on district property or at district-sponsored activities by school directors, staff, 
parents, volunteers, contractors, or visitors is prohibited. 
  
Expectations of Stakeholders (Board of Directors, Employees, Parents, Volunteers, Contractors, 
and Visitors) 
 
In support of this policy, the Board expects all stakeholders to: 
 

• Treat each other and students with dignity and respect; 
• Exercise reasonable, good judgment in handling interpersonal disputes; 
• Exercise respect, courtesy, and concern for the dignity and cultural background of others; 
• Refrain from use of abusive language; 
• Model respectful problem-solving; 
• Reduce actions or behaviors that might provoke fear, anger, frustration, or alienation; 
• Use clear, concise, and courteous oral and written communication to arrive at goodwill 

solutions; 
• Extend common courtesy to others such as saying please and thank you; 
• Practice civility in all conversations and behavior; 
• Be respectful of others even when in a disagreement; 
• Address incivility when it is observed; and 
• Seek to understand others’ points of view and cultural perceptions. 

  
Definition of Uncivil Conduct 
 
For the purposes of this policy, “uncivil conduct” includes but is not limited to, the following: 
 

• Using vulgar, obscene or profane gestures or words; 
• Using insulting or disrespectful nonverbal behaviors toward or in connection with 

another; 
• Taunting, jeering, or inciting others to taunt or jeer an individual; 
• Raising one’s voice at another individual, and/or repeatedly interrupting another 

individual who is speaking; 



5161 

• Using personal epithets or slurs; 
• Gesturing or behaving in a manner that puts others in fear of their personal safety, 

including invading the personal space of an individual after being directed to move away, 
physically blocking an individual’s exit from a room or location, or remaining in a 
classroom or school area after a teacher or administrator in authority has directed one to 
leave, or other similar disruptive conduct. 

  
“Uncivil conduct” does not include the expression of controversial or differing viewpoints that 
may be offensive to some persons, so long as (1) the ideas are presented in a respectful manner 
and at a time and place that are appropriate, and (2) such expression does not materially disrupt, 
and may not be reasonably anticipated to disrupt, the educational process. Nor does “uncivil 
conduct” include regular supervisory-subordinate interactions, including but not limited to, 
corrective action, discipline, unsatisfactory evaluations, plans for improvement, or probation. 
  
Addressing Uncivil Conduct  
 
Stakeholders are expected to:  
 

• Calmly and politely caution or warn any speaker who is engaged in uncivil conduct. If 
the conduct does not cease, politely end the conversation; 

• Attempt to resolve differences with another employee first in a private conversation. If 
that is not feasible or successful, request an appropriate administrator to conduct a private 
conference with all parties of concern; 

• Resolve personal complaints or grievances with a supervisor’s decision or action by 
requesting a problem-solving conference with the supervisor or with the administrator’s 
supervisor. 

• Persons who observe or experience uncivil behavior have an obligation to intervene, 
share their reflection with the offender about the impact of that behavior, or report the 
uncivil behavior to a supervisor. 

• Supervisors have an obligation to address reports of uncivil behavior. 
  
  
Employees who engage in uncivil behavior may be subject to corrective action or discipline. 
Retaliation for reporting allegations will result in discipline. Non-employees may be subject to 
notice of trespass for refusal to follow this civility policy and the reasonable requests of building 
principals.  
 
 
Legal Reference: RCW 28A.635.020  Willfully disobeying school administrative  

personnel or refusing to leave public property,  
violations, when – Penalty.  

 
 
Adopted: September 13, 2023  
 
 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.635.020

	09 13 23 School Board Meeting Agenda
	CONSENT ITEMS
	School Board Meeting Minutes 08 16 23
	Personnel Actions: Certificated
	Personnel Actions: Classified
	Personnel Actions: Extracurricular

	Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans 2023 - 2024
	Budget Status Report Ending July 31, 2023
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending July 31, 2023
	Updated Budget Status Report Ending June 30, 2023
	Carl D. Perkins Grant Assurances 2023 - 2024

	REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS
	2023 - 2024 Strategic Objectives
	Student Growth and Proficiency Targets
	2023 - 2024 Get to Know KSD Plan

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Policy No. 2314, INSTRUCTION: Use of Outside Media Resources in the Classroom

	NEW BUSINESS
	Policy No. 2235, INSTRUCTION: Transition to Kindergarten
	Policy No. 5020, PERSONNEL: Collective Bargaining
	Policy No. 5161, PERSONNEL: Civility in the Workplace




